
 

 

Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb a Chyfiawnder 

Cymdeithasol 
Lleoliad: 

Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 (Senedd) 

Dyddiad: Dydd Llun, 15 Ebrill 2024 

Amser: 13.30

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a: 

Rhys Morgan 

Clerc y Pwyllgor 

0300 200 6565  

SeneddCydraddoldeb@senedd.cymru
------ 

Cofrestru cyn y cyfarfod (13:15 - 13:30)  

 

1 Cyflwyniad, ymddiheuriadau, dirprwyon a datgan buddiannau 

(13:30)   

2 Papurau i’w nodi 

(13:30) 

   

2.1 Gohebiaeth rhwng y Cadeirydd a Chomisiynwyr Tân De Cymru ynghylch 

Gwasanaethau Tân ac Achub Cymru 

 (Tudalennau 1 - 10)  

2.2 Gohebiaeth oddi wrth Ymddiriedolaeth GIG Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans Cymru 

at y Cadeirydd yn rhoi gwybodaeth ychwanegol yn ymchwiliad y 

Gwasanaethau Tân ac Achub (Saesneg yn unig) 

 (Tudalennau 11 - 14)  

2.3 Gohebiaeth oddi wrth Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid at y Cadeirydd yn gofyn am 

ragor o wybodaeth ynghylch craffu ar y gyllideb 

 (Tudalennau 15 - 17)  

2.4 Gohebiaeth oddi wrth Lywodraeth Cymru at y Cadeirydd yn ymateb i bwynt 

gweithredu a gododd yn dilyn cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb a 

Chyfiawnder Cymdeithasol ar 21 Ionawr 2024 ynghylch Unedau Tystiolaeth 

Cydraddoldeb, Hil ac Anabledd (Saesneg yn unig) 

 (Tudalennau 18 - 39)  

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



 

 

2.5 Gohebiaeth oddi wrth y Gweinidog Cyfiawnder Cymdeithasol a’r Prif Chwip at 

y Cadeirydd ynghylch noeth-chwilio plant gan yr Heddlu 

 (Tudalennau 40 - 43)  

2.6 Gohebiaeth rhwng y Cadeirydd ac OXFAM ynghylch yr ymchwiliad dilynol i’r 

ddarpariaeth gofal plant yng Nghymru 

 (Tudalennau 44 - 46)  

2.7 Crynodeb gweithredol oddi wrth Gydffederasiwn y GIG yng Nghymru o’r enw: 

“Action for equality in Wales and Northern Ireland” (Saesneg yn unig) 

  

Action for equality in Wales and Northern Ireland: the time is now  

 

3 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42(vi) a (ix) i benderfynu gwahardd 

y cyhoedd o weddill y cyfarfod heddiw 

(13:30)   

4 Y flaenraglen waith: trafod y camau nesaf 

(13:30-14:30) (Tudalennau 47 - 71)  

https://www.nhsconfed.org/publications/action-equality-wales-and-northern-ireland#:~:text=It%20calls%20on%20healthcare%20leaders,from%20leaders%20at%20the%20top.


  

 

27 March 2024 

 

Jenny Rathbone MS 

Chair of the Equality and Social Justice Committee 

Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay 

Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

 

Sent via email: SeneddEquality@Senedd.Wales 

 

 

Dear Chair, 

 

South Wales Fire and Rescue Service 

 

Firstly, please know that we see your inquiry as a valuable part of our work to develop 

proposals for the future governance of South Wales Fire and Rescue Service, and which 

are most likely to minimise the risk of further failings (Commissioners’ Terms of Reference, 

No.6). 

 

We are pleased to provide the following information in response to each of your questions. 

 

Appointment of Stuart Millington as Interim Chief Fire Officer (CFO) 

  

1. Why was it necessary to appoint an Interim Chief Fire Officer and what is the 

anticipated duration of the appointment?  

 

1.1. The most pressing reason for appointing an interim CFO was to provide 

immediate capacity and experience during the current intervention. There are 

only three operational staff at executive level, and the loss of the substantive 

CFO following the publication of the Morris Review left an immediate gap in 

on-call cover arrangements. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2.1



1.2. The review had identified concerns about the effectiveness of the executive 

leadership team, and it was felt by the Commissioners that an interim leader 

from outside SWFRS was needed. 

 

1.3. We were determined that should be a secondment and a ‘Welsh solution’, to 

enable us to move at pace. 

 

1.4. The secondment is for an initial six-month period but may be extended if 

recruitment of a permanent CFO or Chief Executive Officer cannot take up the 

role in that timeframe. 

 

2. Who made the decision to recommend the appointment of Stuart Millington as Interim 

Chief Fire Officer? What involvement, if any, did the following have in the 

appointment process (in each instance please specify the nature of the involvement): 

a.  Welsh Government officials; 

b.  the Chief Fire and Rescue Adviser and Inspector for Wales, Dan Stephens;  

c.  the Chief Fire Officers of North Wales, and Mid and West Wales Fire and 

Rescue Services; 

d.  the responsible Welsh Government Minister (either that the Deputy Minister 

for Social Partnership or the Minister for Social Justice)? 

 

2.1. Vij Randeniya led a process to identify available and suitable individuals in 

Wales with operational competence at Assistant Chief Fire Officer rank and 

above and who would be able to relocate to the SWFRS area to be part of the 

on-call rota.  

 

2.2. We had already ruled out an internal temporary promotion within SWFS. 

 

2.3. Via the Chief Fire and Rescue Advisor, the CFOs at Mid and West Wales FRS 

and North Wales FRS were asked for the names of potential secondees who 

met that criteria. 

 

2.4. Having identified those individuals and briefed us about them, the CFOs and 

Chief Fire and Rescue Advisor played no further part in the selection. 

Obviously, CFO Dawn Docx was consulted to confirm the release of Stuart 

Millington on secondment. 

 

2.5. No Welsh Government Minister or officials were involved in identifying 

individuals or approving the secondment. 

 

2.6. All four Commissioners were involved in reviewing the available individuals 

against our criteria of having appropriate experience, skills, and being 

available to relocate to the SWFRS area. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 2



3. During our evidence sessions with trade unions, both the Fire Brigades Union and 

the Fire and Rescue Services Association expressed concerns regarding the 

appointment. In particular Tristan Ashby told us: “we were surprised that somebody 

without any proven track record and somebody who wasn't a chief, but was an 

assistant chief, was chosen,” adding that they did not understand how the 

appointment was made or what due diligence was undertaken. How would you 

respond to these concerns? 

 

3.1. The Commissioners do not share Mr Ashby’s concerns. 

 

3.2. No individuals in Wales at Chief or Deputy level were available or met the 

criteria. 

 

3.3. Stuart Millington is a hugely experienced fire service leader, with experience 

serving in different FRSs in Wales and England. He has already proved to be 

an effective and empathetic leader in his time at SWFRS. 

 

3.4. Beyond his operational and leadership expertise, CFO Millington’s breadth of 

experience closely match the transformation programme requirements at 

SWFRS and align with the Commissioners’ terms of reference. (Appendix A). 

 

Appointment of a permanent successor as Chief Fire Officer 

 

4. What are the anticipated timescales for the appointment of a permanent successor 

as Chief Fire Officer for South Wales? What is the target start date? Do you have a 

target start date? 

 

4.1. Work is already underway to prepare the recruitment materials, so a full-scale 

recruitment process will launch very soon. The advertising and shortlisting 

process could take up to three months and it is likely that the successful 

candidate will need to give three months’ notice to their current employer. 

 

4.2. We have not set a target start date beyond ‘as soon as practicable’. 

 

5. Who will be responsible for deciding the recruitment criteria for the permanent 

successor as Chief Fire Officer? 

 

5.1. The Commissioners and executive leadership team are in the process of 

writing a person specification and a role description that is designed to meet 

specific current and emerging needs of the SWFRS. Many of the role 

requirements are set out in the Gold Book standard terms and conditions. 

 

6. How would you involve staff and stakeholders in the appointment process? 

 

6.1. How we involve colleagues and stakeholders in the recruitment is still being 

developed, but they will be a vital part of a challenging process designed to 

identify an exceptional individual to lead the Service. 

Tudalen y pecyn 3



 

6.2. It is likely that we will invite staff and stakeholders to be part of panels that will 

meet with shortlisted candidates, ask them questions, and be part of 

discussions and exercises. They will then provide feedback to assist the 

appointment panel with its deliberations. The exact exercise will be developed 

in partnership with the relevant staff-led Transformation Programme working 

group. 

 

7. How do you intend to ensure a diverse field of candidates for the position of Chief 

Fire Officer? Will For example, might you consider appointing a candidate from a 

different professional field or background? 

 

7.1. To ensure we attract a broad and diverse field, we will be working with an 

executive search consultancy with specific experience of recruiting to blue light 

and public sector leadership roles. 

 

Resources for undertaking your work 

 

8. How will costs incurred as a result of your work be paid for? Will they be met from the 

Welsh Government budget or the South Wales Fire and Rescue Service budget? 

 

8.1. The Commissioners fees and activities driven by our Terms of Reference are 

paid from the SWFRS budget. 

 

9. What dedicated resources have been made available for your use within the South 

Wales Fire and Rescue Service? 

 

9.1. The Commissioners will be making use of the talented and knowledgeable 

staff across SWFRS, because much of the work arising from our Terms of 

Reference forms part of core duties and roles. 

 

9.2. There is already an established team that support the governance function 

previously undertaken by the Fire Authority. 

 

9.3. A new post of Director of Strategic Change and Transformation has been 

created to oversee the Transformation Programme. 

 

9.4. We have a dedicated Personal Assistant, and a Project Progress Administrator 

is being recruited, both on secondment from other roles within SWFRS. 

 

10. What dedicated resources have been made available for your use within the Welsh 

Government? 

 

10.1. We have access to the existing staff within the Welsh Government’s Fire 

Services Branch. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 4



Working together  

 

11. How will you ensure effective communication between all four commissioners? Given 

the nature of your other commitments, you are likely to be working from different 

locations across the country how will you ensure that this does not become a barrier 

to collaboration? 

 

11.1. Commissioners have online meetings and telephone conversations as 

required, in addition to working together in person for one day a week. Our PA 

maintains an actions and contact register. 

 

12. What arrangements will you put in place for regular reporting on progress? 

 

12.1. The Commissioners initially met with the Deputy Minister and/or Welsh 

Government staff every week to provide a progress report against our Terms 

of Reference. 

 

12.2. An oversight board, chaired by Welsh Government officials, has now been 

established, and meets formally every month and informally in-between. 

 

 

We believe this answers the questions raised, but please feel free to contact us again if we 

can be of further assistance. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner for South Wales Fire and Rescue Service 

 

 

cc Vij Randeniya 

Lady Wilcox 

 Kirsty Williams 

 Carl Foulkes 

CFO Stuart Millington 

Tudalen y pecyn 5



Appendix A – CFO Stuart Millington biography 

  

After spending 14 years working in a variety of roles in the former Clwyd and then North 

Wales Fire and Rescue Service (NWFRS), I transferred to Greater Manchester Fire and 

Rescue Service (GMFRS), in November 2008. 

 

I spent six years working in a variety of roles both within GMFRS as well as in a seconded 

position working for the Association of Greater Manchester Authorities, and during this time 

I was responsible for producing the Greater Manchester Strategic Assessment. 

 

My time in Greater Manchester allowed me to experience a myriad of different challenges 

and work to improve the life experiences and chances of people and communities in highly 

deprived and socially challenging parts of inner-city Manchester and Salford, as well as 

across all ten Greater Manchester Boroughs.  

  

In November 2014 I returned to NWFRS as an Area Manager with responsibility for 

Prevention and Protection as the Senior Fire Safety Manager (SFSM). 

  

During this time, I was the Welsh lead for Children and Young People (CYP) and worked 

collaboratively with colleagues in the other two Welsh fire and rescue services towards our 

common goals, as well as representing Wales at the NFCC CYP Executive Board. 

  

As SFSM I was instrumental in developing community safety activities on a journey from 

the traditional Home Fire Safety Check towards the ‘Safe and Well’ checks that 

incorporated brief intervention conversations regarding healthy eating, exercise, smoking, 

drug or alcohol use and mental well-being, as well as introducing the use of the falls risk 

assessment toolkit (FRAT) as part of an integrated offer to residents. 

  

I was the North Wales Blue Light services lead for ‘Prevent and Respond’, the group that 

designed, developed, and introduced new ways of preventing and responding to incidents 

from a tri service perspective.  This saw the introduction of a falls response service called 

the Community Assistance Team (CAT).  CAT was made up of NWFRS staff members who 

responded to non-injured fallers on behalf of the Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust. 

 

I have also led on the introduction of a structured approach to support North Wales Police 

in providing a timely response to those who are highly vulnerable and who may be missing 

from their homes or healthcare establishments, with highly complex needs. 

  

In September 2017 I moved into the Senior Operations Manager (SOM) role and became 

responsible for the delivery of our operational emergency response. 

  

Time spent in this role allowed me to oversee some key pieces of work including devising 

new ways of working with ‘on call’ firefighters to maintain and improve Service availability, 

as well as the introduction and implementation of National Operational Guidance and 

learning. I was also responsible for progressing the tender and introduction of new items of 

equipment on an ‘all-Wales’ basis, including breathing apparatus, fire kit and fire 

appliances. 

Tudalen y pecyn 6



In November 2019 I moved into the Senior Training and Development Manager (STDM) 

role and worked to challenge and reform the way in which training was being delivered in 

North Wales. However, as that work was beginning to gather momentum in early 2020, 

Covid struck and I led for the Service in much of the work to maintain business continuity 

and a suitable operational response in a socially distanced and locked down world. 

  

I led on the introduction of several control measures including safe systems of work, PPE 

and Covid testing, as well as work to support the introduction of Rainbow hospitals and an 

emergency mortuary.  I also supported partners in the work to roll out inoculations.   

  

In February 2021 I was promoted to Assistant Chief Fire Officer (ACFO) with strategic 

responsibility for all operational matters, including response, preparedness, procurement, 

Fire Control, as well as Fleet and Training and Development. 

  

Soon after which we began to emerge from Covid, and I led the organisation’s return to its 

new normality and supported staff transition back into the workplace. 

  

I led on an operational management restructure that moved from functional departments to 

area-based teams, all in a bid to gain a better understanding and more timely response to 

the local issues facing staff and partners. 

  

As part of filling the new operational management structure, I led on a review and overhaul 

of the internal promotional process and introduced annual promotional boards with full 

transparency and communication with candidates at every stage. 

  

As Armed Forces lead, I worked to support the introduction of the Armed Forces Covenant 

and achieved firstly bronze and subsequently silver and then gold award status in the 

Armed Forces Employer Recognition Awards. 

  

I have also recently supported the NFCC response to assist with appliances and 

equipment in the Ukraine and ensured that North Wales was part of the last three convoys 

to drive to the Ukraine and Poland border. 

  

At NWFRS, I chaired the Health, Safety and Wellbeing Committee, and have instigated 

work to improve the organisations position in relation to contaminants, and this has 

included the introduction of safe systems of work to remove contaminants, clean cab 

solutions and the installation of two Breathing Apparatus washing machines. 

  

I also chaired the Operational Learning Committee. This committee oversees and holds to 

account the work of seven subgroups: Operational Assurance, Operational Learning, 

Training and Development, National Operational Guidance, Research and Innovation, Risk 

Information, and Business Continuity.  It is through this committee that I have led on the 

organisational response to the recommendations from Grenfell, Manchester Arena Inquiry 

and the Chief Fire and Rescue Advisor for Wales’ thematic reviews. 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 7



I was the strategic lead for business continuity arrangements in the event of industrial 

action and moved the organisation to the position where it was prepared to provide a 

reduced service in the event of strike days being called. 

  

I led on business continuity planning for a national power outage and have recently worked 

with the Head of Control to ensure robust arrangements are in place in the event of a 

national or regional loss of the 999 networks. I am the Service strategic representative on 

the ESMCP Fire Customer Group. 

  

I represent Wales at the NFCC Operations, Preparedness and Response Committee, as 

well as being the Welsh Strategic lead for National Resilience and NILO. 

  

I am the Vice Chair for the Local Resilience Forum (LRF) and I am the Chair of the LRF 

Coordination Committee.  I also represent North Wales Fire and Rescue Service on North 

Wales Public Service Boards. 

  

I recently sponsored and oversaw the completion of our RDS Experience Review, written 

by ‘on call’ firefighters, for ‘on call’ firefighters in a bid to break down barriers and allow a 

better experience to be had, with the goal to improve recruitment and retention. 

  

I regularly present items for discussion and decision to the Fire Authority and have 

supported Members in several working groups, including most recently to develop and 

introduce an Environmental Strategy and the subordinate documents that will help to 

achieve the Welsh Government target of public services being carbon neutral by 2030.  I 

have also supported the Fire Authority in working to introduce a new operational response 

model for North Wales following public consultation as part of an extensive Emergency 

Cover Review. 

  

I am the current Chair of the Local Pensions Board and represent North Wales at the 

Welsh Firefighters Pension Scheme Advisory Board. 

  

For the last two years I have also supported the NFCC Executive Leadership Programme 

and have assessed potential candidates and provided feedback to them after their 

assessments. 

Tudalen y pecyn 8



 

 

  

 

 

 

18 Mawrth 2024 

Annwyl Gomisiynwyr,  

Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub De Cymru  

Rydym wedi bod yn glir o'r cychwyn cyntaf na ddylai ein hymchwiliad i drefniadau llywodraethu gwasanaethau 

tân ac achub amharu ar eich gwaith pwysig i ddiwygio Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub De Cymru. Rydym yn 

dymuno pob llwyddiant i chi yn hynny o beth ac roeddem yn ddiolchgar am y cyfle i bwysleisio hyn pan 

wnaethom gyfarfod yr wythnos diwethaf. Er mwyn galluogi sgwrs agored a gonest, gwnaethom benderfynu 

cynnal y cyfarfod cychwynnol hwnnw’n breifat. Fodd bynnag, rydym yn cydnabod bod nifer o faterion er budd 

y cyhoedd yn deillio o'n gwaith y mae angen mynd ar eu trywydd yn fwy ffurfiol ac yn ysgrifenedig. Nodir y 

rhain isod.   

Penodi Stuart Millington fel Prif Swyddog Tân Dros Dro 

Hoffem ofyn am fwy o wybodaeth ynglŷn â phenodi Stuart Millington fel Prif Swyddog Tân Dros Dro 

Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub De Cymru. Yn benodol, byddem yn ddiolchgar pe gallech ateb pob un o'r 

cwestiynau a ganlyn: 

1. Pam roedd angen penodi Prif Swyddog Tân Dros Dro a beth yw hyd disgwyliedig y penodiad? 

 

2. Pwy wnaeth y penderfyniad i argymell penodi Stuart Millington fel Prif Swyddog Tân Dros 

Dro? Pa gyfraniad, os o gwbl, a gafodd y canlynol yn y broses benodi (ym mhob achos, 

nodwch natur y cyfraniad): 

a. Swyddogion Llywodraeth Cymru; 

b. Dan Stephens, Prif Gynghorydd Tân ac Achub ac Arolygydd Cymru; 

c. Prif Swyddogion Tân Gwasanaethau Tân ac Achub Gogledd Cymru a Chanolbarth a 

Gorllewin Cymru;  

d. y Gweinidog cyfrifol yn Llywodraeth Cymru (boed y Dirprwy Weinidog Partneriaeth 

Gymdeithasol neu'r Gweinidog Cyfiawnder Cymdeithasol)?  

 

3. Yn ystod ein sesiwn gydag undebau llafur, mynegodd Undeb y Brigadau Tân a'r Gymdeithas 

Gwasanaethau Tân ac Achub bryderon ynghylch y penodiad. Yn benodol, dywedodd Tristan 

Y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb  
a Chyfiawnder Cymdeithasol 

— 

Equality and Social Justice  
Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddCydraddoldeb@senedd.cymru 

senedd.cymru/SeneddCydraddoldeb  

0300 200 6565  

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddEquality@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddEquality  

0300 200 6565  Carl Foulkes 

Vij Randeniya  

Y Farwnes Wilcox o Gasnewydd  

Kirsty Williams   

 

Tudalen y pecyn 9



 

 

Ashby y canlynol wrthym y cawsant eu synnu y dewiswyd rhywun heb lwyddiant blaenorol, nad 

oedd yn bennaeth, ond yn bennaeth cynorthwyol, gan ychwanegu nad oeddent yn deall sut y 

gwnaed y penodiad na pha ddiwydrwydd dyladwy a gynhaliwyd.1 Sut fyddech yn ymateb i’r 

pryderon hyn?  

Penodi olynydd parhaol fel Prif Swyddog Tân 

4. Beth yw'r amserlenni disgwyliedig ar gyfer penodi olynydd parhaol fel Prif Swyddog Tân De 

Cymru? A oes gennych ddyddiad dechrau targed? 

5. Pwy fydd yn gyfrifol am benderfynu ar y meini prawf recriwtio ar gyfer yr olynydd parhaol fel Prif 

Swyddog Tân? 

6. Sut y byddwch yn cynnwys staff a rhanddeiliaid yn y broses benodi?  

7. Sut rydych yn bwriadu sicrhau amrywiaeth o ymgeiswyr ar gyfer swydd y Prif Swyddog Tân? Er 

enghraifft, a fyddech yn ystyried penodi ymgeisydd o faes neu gefndir proffesiynol gwahanol?  

Adnoddau ar gyfer gwneud eich gwaith 

8. Sut y telir y costau sy’n deillio o'ch gwaith? A fyddant yn cael eu talu o gyllideb Llywodraeth 

Cymru neu gyllideb Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub De Cymru?  

9. Pa adnoddau pwrpasol sydd ar gael i chi eu defnyddio yng Ngwasanaeth Tân ac Achub De 

Cymru? 

10. Pa adnoddau pwrpasol sydd ar gael i chi eu defnyddio yn Llywodraeth Cymru? 

Cydweithio 

11. Sut y byddwch yn sicrhau cyfathrebu effeithiol rhwng y pedwar comisiynydd? O ystyried bod 

natur eich ymrwymiadau’n golygu eich bod yn debygol o fod yn gweithio o leoliadau gwahanol ar 

draws y wlad, sut y byddwch yn sicrhau nad yw hyn yn rhwystr i gydweithio? 

12. Pa drefniadau y byddwch yn eu rhoi ar waith ar gyfer adrodd ar gynnydd yn rheolaidd?  

Byddwn yn ddiolchgar am ymateb cyn gynted ag y bo'n gyfleus i chi ac erbyn 5 Ebrill 2024 fan bellaf. Rwy’n 

anfon copi o’r llythyr hwn at y Dirprwy Weinidog Partneriaeth Gymdeithasol.  

Yn gywir,  

 

Jenny Rathbone AS 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb a Chyfiawnder Cymdeithasol  

                                                      

1 Y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb a Chyfiawnder Cymdeithasol, paragraff 237, 4 Mawrth 2023 

Tudalen y pecyn 10

https://cofnod.senedd.cymru/Committee/14015


 

 

Cadeirydd 

Chair: Colin Dennis 

Prif Weithredwr 

Chief Executive: Jason Killens 

Mae’r Ymddiriedolaeth yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg 

neu’r Saesneg, ac na fydd gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi 

The Trust welcomes correspondence in Welsh or English, and 

that corresponding in Welsh will not lead to a delay 

www.ambulance.wales.nhs.uk 

Pencadlys Rhanbarthol 
Ambiwlans  

Regional Ambulance 
Headquarters  

Beacon House 
William Brown Close  
Llantarnam, Cwmbran 
NP44 3AB 

Ffôn/Tel  
01633 626262 

 

Swyddfa’r Prif Weithredwr a’r Cadeirydd 

Chair and Chief Executive’s Office 

 

Ref: JK 11/24 
 
25th March 2024  
 
Ms Jenny Rathbone MS 
Chair, Equality and Social Justice Committee 
Welsh Parliament  
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff 
CF99 1SN 
 
 
Dear Ms Rathbone 
 
Further information on the Welsh Ambulance Services NHS Trust response to 
recommendations of Commission on Public Service Governance and Delivery 2014 
 
Many thanks for the opportunity to appear before Committee on the afternoon of March 18, 2024 
in respect of Committee’s work on the governance of fire and rescue services. The constructive 
and insightful questioning by members was much appreciated and it is hoped the responses I 
provided, together with our Director of People and Culture, Angela Lewis, were helpful. 
 
I made a commitment to respond to Ken Skates’ question in relation to the Welsh Ambulance’s 
response to recommendations made by the Commission on Public Service Governance and 
Delivery, which was led by Sir Paul Williams and published in January 2014. 
 
I have taken the opportunity to review the recommendations of the Commission, given that its 
publication predates my arrival at WAST by more than four years. 
 
If I am correct, the recommendations to which Mr Skates is referring are recommendations 16 and 
20, which I set out for ease below: 
 
Recommendation 16: FRAs should also assume responsibility for scrutinising joint working 
between the fire and ambulance services. In the future, and subject to further devolution, a 
reconstituted body may be established with responsibility for providing scrutiny 
across all the emergency services. (paragraph 2. 61)  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 11

Eitem 2.2

http://www.ambulance.wales.nhs.uk/


Recommendation 20: The three Fire Services and the Welsh Ambulance Service NHS Trust 
(WAST) must capitalise on their common responsibilities and service delivery mechanisms. To do 
so: 
 
Each of the Fire Services and WAST must produce a clear plan for strategic and 
operational co-ordination and alignment by the end of 2014, including proposals as 
regards sharing of premises and co-ordinating responses to incidents requiring both 
a fire and ambulance presence; 
 
Once established, the reformed FRAs should scrutinise progress in developing and 
implementing these plans at least on an annual basis. (paragraph 2.83)  
 
If I may start with recommendation 20, I think it is fair to say that there has been some progress in 
terms of the sharing of premises across Wales. At the time of the 2022 Audit Wales review of joint 
working by emergency services, 15 of 110 (13.6%) buildings owned or leased by the Welsh 
Ambulance Service had one or more emergency service or responder working from them. 
However, it is also fair to say that there has been more limited progress in respect of operational 
co-ordination and alignment.  
 
For example, the Trust agreed a strategic direction of travel in 2016 to deliver clinical contact 
services from three centres across Wales, one in North Wales and two in South Wales, with a 
focus on delivery of the “integrated health” model. 
 
This model would bring together EMS control, NEPTS control, NHSDW/111 and GP out-of-hours 
services and, wherever possible, include collaboration with other emergency services in Wales.   
 
The tri control centre in Bridgend presented as an opportunity to work with Mid and West Wales 
Fire and Rescue Service, South Wales Fire and Rescue Service and South Wales Police, and an 
exercise followed which tested the “fit” of this opportunity for WAST. 
 
At its meeting on 23 March 2017, Board members considered a detailed paper on the outcome of 
engagement with staff and stakeholders on the future location of the Clinical Control Centre in Mid 
and West Wales. Specifically, this work tested whether a move of the then NHS Direct Wales 
services in Thanet House, Swansea and EMS control in Llangunnor, Carmarthen to the new tri-
service centre in Bridgend was a feasible and viable option that would bring about benefits.    
 
The engagement exercise focused, in part, on testing the validity of the assumptions made as part 
of the previous desktop options appraisal work, as well as gauging staff and stakeholder views 
more generally about the future options for a clinical contact centre serving mid and west Wales. 
 
The paper concluded that a move of all services to the tri control centre was not a feasible or 
preferable option for a number of reasons, namely: 
 

• Distance to travel to Bridgend from Llangunnor, with many staff living further west. 

• Workforce implications, including staff welfare and wellbeing and recruitment and retention. 

• Synergy with the previously articulated strategic direction and realising the benefits co-
terminosity, specifically the move to being coterminous with South Wales Police from a CCC 
where co-terminosity applies to only two of five divisional desks and the resultant loss of any 
co-terminosity with Dyfed Powys Police. 

• The challenge which such a move would pose to the previously articulated strategic direction of 
three CCCs based on an integrated health model. 

 
The Board agreed that a wholesale move of both NHS Direct Wales and the Llangunnor CCC to 
the tri-service centre was not supported, for all the reasons identified. 
 Tudalen y pecyn 12



To the best of my knowledge, there was no scrutiny of that decision at that time by the relevant 
Fire Service Authorities. WAST has continued to develop its approach to the integration of its 
services and call handling capacity, recognising that much ground has been travelled since 2017, 
including the development of the pan-Wales 111 service, provided by the Welsh Ambulance 
Service, greater integration of NEPTS call handling within our clinical contact centre environments 
and the development of our clinical support desk functions, which increasingly provide a “consult 
and close” service for lower acuity patients, as well as providing clinical advice and support to on-
scene crews.   
 
In terms of strategic development and identifying opportunities for further collaboration, we are 
active members of the Joint Emergency Services Group (JESG), to which I made reference at 
Committee. The Group considers services’ contribution to civil contingencies, counterterrorism and 
focuses on addressing wider cross-service issues of joint interest. While this is an informal 
grouping of Chief Officers from the three emergency services across Wales, it provides an 
opportunity for discussion of shared challenges and opportunities, including a very successful 
integrated anti-violence campaign, #WithUsNotAgainstUs, which is now being used as a template 
across the UK. This initiative was led and developed by WAST. You can read more about it here. 
JESG was also a helpful vehicle in sharing issues around emergency service response during the 
height of the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 
Clearly, while we also work closely with Mid and West Fire and Rescue Service on a co-
responding model that focuses on where fire service colleagues can absolutely add value to the 
service we provide, for example in support patients who have fallen, are uninjured but, for 
whatever reason, are unable to get up, we continue to keep our options open as to the opportunity 
for further collaboration with emergency service partners across Wales. 
 
In respect of more recent issues which have emerged in fire and rescue services, the work that 
WAST continues to undertake to improve its cultural climate and sexual safety is an example of 
perhaps where there is greater opportunity to share our learning, notwithstanding that we have 
presented the work undertaken to-date to colleagues at JESG. For example, we would be pleased 
to engage with the new commissioners of the South Wales Fire and Rescue Service and I have 
already reached out to the incoming interim Chief Fire Officer, Stuart Millington, to offer any 
assistance he might require. 
 
In terms of more structural integration and reform, the Audit Wales report acknowledges that, while 
optimising the opportunity for further collaboration and achieving better value for money for the 
taxpayer are critical, further integration is not a priority at this time, for a range of operational and 
governance reasons, as we outlined in our evidence. 
 
That said, we recognise that government funding is under significant financial pressure and, as an 
ambulance service, we will continue to actively explore appropriate opportunities to further our 
relationship with the other emergency services in Wales. It is important to recognise that our role is 
not just one of a first responder to life-threatening emergencies, but predominantly one of a first 
line of care and support to patients with a range of health conditions, some of which may not be 
life-threatening, but which are complex and debilitating. We are currently working with our 
commissioners and other stakeholders on our long-term plans, which would see us play a more 
central care co-ordination and management role across the health and care sector, with an 
ambition to care for patients more appropriately in the community, reducing the need for hospital 
conveyance and admission, optimising the skills of our staff coupled with digital technology. 
 
While organisationally there would be a willingness to consider alternative, and potentially more 
closely aligned governance arrangements between WAST and fire and rescue services across 
Wales, it is important to remember that the ambulance service has a pan-Wales footprint and 
manages significantly more demand than the three fire and rescue services combined.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 13



Given that the overwhelming majority of our work is in relation to individual patients and/or clinical 
episodes of care, rather than joint work with other emergency services, we would not see a sole 
entity overseeing our services alongside fire and rescue, or indeed the police services should they 
be devolved at any point in the future, given the criticality of WAST remaining within the NHS as a 
key clinical service. 
  
I trust this response has been helpful to Committee. However, should any further assistance or 
information be required, please do not hesitate to contact me. We look forward with interest to the 
Committee’s recommendations in due course. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
Professor Jason Killens KAM 
Chief Executive 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 14



 

 

 

 

 

 

22 Mawrth 2024 

Annwyl Gadeiryddion Pwyllgorau, 

Craffu ar y gyllideb ddrafft 

Byddwch yn cofio fy mod wedi ysgrifennu y llynedd yn gwahodd Pwyllgorau i fynegi barn ar 

welliannau y gallai Llywodraeth Cymru eu gwneud i’r dogfennau mae’n eu cynhyrchu ochr yn ochr â’i 

Chyllideb Ddrafft ac mewn tystiolaeth ysgrifenedig gan y Gweinidog a ddarparwyd i’r pwyllgorau. 

Cafodd eich ymatebion eu hystyried gan y Pwyllgor ar 21 Mehefin 2023 ac wedi hynny ysgrifennais at 

y Gweinidog Cyllid a Llywodraeth Leol (y Gweinidog) ar 23 Mehefin 2023 yn gofyn am ystyried y 

pryderon a godwyd cyn rownd cyllideb 2024-25. Roedd rhain yn ymwneud â’r hyn a ganlyn: 

▪ cyhoeddi’r gyllideb ddrafft yn hwyr, gan arwain at broses graffu wedi’i chwtogi; 

▪ diffyg tryloywder ynghylch effaith y gyllideb ddrafft ar feysydd polisi o fewn cylch gwaith 

pob Pwyllgor; 

▪ ansawdd isel y dystiolaeth ysgrifenedig a ddarparwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru; 

▪ ni wnaeth Llywodraeth Cymru ddarparu ymatebion i rai argymhellion gan bwyllgorau cyn 

y ddadl ar y Gyllideb Derfynol. 

Y Pwyllgor Cyllid  
— 
Finance Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddCyllid@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddCyllid  

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddFinance@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddFinance  
0300 200 6565 Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Plant, Pobl Ifanc ac Addysg 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Newid Hinsawdd, yr Amgylchedd a Seilwaith 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Diwylliant, Cyfathrebu, y Gymraeg, Chwaraeon, a 

Chysylltiadau Rhyngwladol 

Cadeirydd Pwyllgor yr Economi, Masnach a Materion Gwledig 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb a Chyfiawnder Cymdeithasol 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Iechyd a Gofal Cymdeithasol 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Deddfwriaeth, Cyfiawnder a'r Cyfansoddiad  

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Llywodraeth Leol a Thai 

Tudalen y pecyn 15

Eitem 2.3

https://busnes.senedd.cymru/documents/s134944/Llythyr%20gan%20Gadeirydd%20y%20Pwyllgor%20Cyllid%20at%20Gadeiryddion%20Pwyllgorau%20mewn%20perthynas%20dogfennaur%20gyll.pdf
mailto:SeneddCYPE@senedd.wales


 

 

Codwyd y materion hyn eto yn ystod y gwaith o drafod Cyllideb Ddrafft Llywodraeth Cymru 2024-25 

yn gynharach eleni. Yn ein adroddiad gwnaed yr argymhellion a'r casgliadau a ganlyn gan adeiladu ar 

y safbwyntiau a fynegwyd yn flaenorol: 

Casgliad 2. Bydd y Pwyllgor yn ymgynghori â phwyllgorau'r Senedd sy'n ymwneud 

â chraffu ar y gyllideb cyn cylch cyllideb 2025-26 i gael gwell dealltwriaeth o'r 

dystiolaeth a ddarparwyd gan Lywodraeth Cymru i gefnogi'r Gyllideb Ddrafft ac i 

archwilio ffyrdd o wneud y mwyaf o waith craffu cyllidebol drwy gydol y flwyddyn 

Argymhelliad 1.  Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod y Gweinidog yn cyhoeddi 

papurau tystiolaeth gweinidogion ar yr un pryd â'r Gyllideb Ddrafft er mwyn rhoi 

eglurder ar y meini prawf a'r blaenoriaethau sy’n sail i benderfyniadau 

gweinidogion, gyda'r nod o alluogi rhanddeiliaid i gymryd rhan yn y broses graffu 

yn fwy effeithiol ac yn gynharach yn y broses. 

Argymhelliad 2. Mae’r Pwyllgor yn argymell, os caiff y Gyllideb Ddrafft ei gohirio 

eto yn y dyfodol: 

▪ bod y Gweinidog a'r swyddogion yn parhau i fynd i sesiwn cyn craffu ar y gyllideb 

gyda'r Pwyllgor Cyllid; a 

▪ bod y Gweinidog yn gweithio gyda'r Pwyllgor Cyllid i nodi dulliau gweithredu a all 

wella cyfleoedd craffu, gan gynnwys darparu dogfennaeth sy’n ymwneud â'r 

Gyllideb Ddrafft yn gynharach. 

Derbyniwyd yr argymhellion hyn mewn egwyddor, gyda’r Gweinidog yn amlygu’r anawsterau 

ymarferol wrth ymateb i faint o wybodaeth y gofynnir amdani gan bwyllgorau unigol, ar yr un pryd â 

chyhoeddi'r Gyllideb Ddrafft. 

Gofynnwn felly i chi ystyried y materion canlynol, ac i ddarparu ymateb erbyn dydd Gwener 24 Mai 

2024. 

▪ Pa welliannau, os o gwbl, ydych chi wedi’u gweld yn y ddogfennaeth a ddarperir gan 

Lywodraeth Cymru ochr yn ochr â Chyllideb Ddrafft 2024-25? 

▪ Ydych chi wedi nodi unrhyw welliannau pellach y gellid eu gwneud i’r wybodaeth a 

ddarperir ochr yn ochr â’r Gyllideb Ddrafft? 

▪ O ystyried yr amser byr sydd ar gael i graffu, pa ystyriaeth, os o gwbl, ydych chi wedi'i rhoi 

i graffu ar faterion cyllidebol o fewn eich cylch gwaith yn gynharach, er enghraifft ystyried 

cynllunio strategol tymor hwy, cymryd camau dilynol o ran argymhellion craffu blaenorol 

neu brosesau penderfynu cyn i'r Gyllideb Ddrafft gael ei chyhoeddi? 

Tudalen y pecyn 16

https://www.llyw.cymru/sites/default/files/publications/2023-12/cynigion-cyllideb-ddrafft-2024-2025.pdf
https://senedd.cymru/media/z2uhe4gl/cr-ld16314-w.pdf
https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s145789/Welsh%20Governments%20response%20to%20the%20Finance%20Committees%20report%20Scrutiny%20of%20the%20Welsh%20Government%20Draft%20B.pdf#page=2


 

 

▪ Mae’r Pwyllgor hefyd yn gweithio ar hyn o bryd gyda'r Gweinidog a rhanddeiliaid eraill i 

adolygu Protocol Proses y Gyllideb i sicrhau bod prosesau cyllidebol y Senedd yn 

adlewyrchu arferion a ddatblygwyd yn y Chweched Senedd hyd yma. A oes gennych 

unrhyw farn am weithdrefnau cyllidebol y Senedd yn ehangach? 

Rydym yn ddiolchgar i chi am eich ymgysylltiad parhaus â ni ar y materion hyn ac yn croesawu 

unrhyw ohebiaeth bellach sy'n ymateb i'r pwyntiau uchod. 

Ein nod yw codi'r materion hyn ar ran y Pwyllgorau gyda'r Gweinidog cyn y ddadl yn y Cyfarfod Llawn 

ar flaenoriaethau cyllidebol ar gyfer 2025-26 a fydd yn digwydd cyn toriad yr haf. 

Yn gywir, 

 

Peredur Owen Griffiths AS 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 17



 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

1 
 

Background 

The Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units were established in January 2022 following a 

number of key reports highlighting the higher impact of COVID on disadvantaged groups. The 

Evidence Units consist of three teams: 

• Equality Evidence Unit, 

• Race Disparity Evidence Unit, 

• Disability Disparity Evidence Unit.  

Most of the work of the Evidence Units is deliberately cross-cutting and intersectional so the 

three Evidence Units work jointly on most projects.  

In 2023-24 the Evidence Units’ budget was £1.5m and remains around that level for 2024-25. 
Some of their projects are carried out in-house and other work is commissioned where expert 
resources are required. 

The Evidence Units are made up of a mixture of analysts, which includes statisticians and social 

researchers that support policy-making across the Welsh Government. The Evidence Units sit 

alongside policy colleagues who work in the areas of equalities, human rights, and social justice 

and also work closely with other analysts across the Welsh Government. 

 

Our Purpose 

The purpose of the Evidence Units is to improve the availability, quality, granularity and 

accessibility of equalities evidence to enable decision-makers across Wales to develop better 

informed policies and measure their impact. A Welsh Government Equalities Evidence Strategy 

was published in Autumn 2022.  

 

Many of the projects are therefore longer-term and aimed at fundamentally improving the 

equalities evidence base. Specific examples include: 

• Looking at options to boost the sample for the National Survey for Wales so that National 

Well-being measures can be broken down by equality characteristics. 

• Working with Administrative Data Research to secure data for more granular pay gap 

analysis on ethnicity, disability and gender. 

• Providing insight into the equality characteristics of the board members of Public Sector 

Bodies in Wales. 

• Development of frameworks which set out how to measure the impact of key strategic 

equality actions plans, including the Anti-racist Wales Action Plan. 

• Setting out how information can be collected to measure the social model of disability. 

• Coproducing evidence, for example, with members of the Disability Rights Taskforce to 

provide further evidence on the feasibility of the taskforce’s recommendations. 

• Considering the development of measures for sex and gender in Wales. 

 

The Evidence Units play a key role in embedding considerations of equality throughout all 

evidence across Welsh Government.   

Tudalen y pecyn 18

Eitem 2.4

https://www.gov.wales/equality-race-and-disability-evidence-units-strategy-html#105595


 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

2 
 

Examples of impact on policy-making so far: 

The Evidence Units have delivered evidence to support policy decisions, for example: 

• An analysis of the impact of budget decisions on equality groups for Budget and 

Government Business. 

• An additional analysis of the Census providing breakdown of all key Census data by 

ethnicity, which is central to measuring the impact of the Anti-racist Wales Action Plan 

(ArWAP). 

• Led on measuring the Migrant Integration Framework (Migrant Integration Framework | 

GOV.WALES), including identifying Wales-level data sources to measure outcomes for 

migrants. 

• An additional analysis of the Census providing breakdown of all key Census data by 

disability, which is central to measuring the impact of a future Disability Rights Action 

Plan. 

• Provided evidence to shape and agree priorities for the LGBTQ+ Action Plan and 

Advancing Gender Equality Action Plan. 

• An additional analysis of the Census providing breakdown of all key Census data by 

sexual orientation and gender identity, which is central to measuring the impact of the 

LGBTQ+ Action Plan. 

 

Annex A provides a full list of the projects the Evidence Units have completed in the 2023-24 

and are delivering and scoping in 2024-25 including information on impact. These have been 

informed by policy need as part of the evidence planning process across the three Evidence 

Units. A summary of our key priorities and their intended impact is provided below. 

 

Our key priorities for 2023-25 and intended impact of our work 

Evidence to inform budget setting 

The Equality Evidence Unit are members of the Budget Improvement and Impact Advisory 

Group. Policy needs arising from this group and the review of the Strategic Integrated Impact 

Assessment process will be built into the Evidence Units evidence plan for 2024-25 and 2025-

26. The Evidence Units are commissioned each year to undertake a macro summary of the 

evidence on equality to highlight who would be the most impacted by budget setting to inform 

decisions on budget allocations. This involves drawing out where people who belonged to 

equality groups/those with protected characteristics had multiple intersecting characteristics that 

meant they would be more susceptible to negative impacts from potential cuts to certain 

services compared to people without multiple intersecting equality characteristics. This evidence 

will be used in the Strategic Integrated Impact Assessment of the 2025-26 Draft Budget. 

Feasibility of minorities sample boost for the National Survey for Wales  

The National Survey for Wales (National Survey) is a key data source for the National Well-

Being indicators which monitor progress and is a key source of information for policy decisions. 

In its current design state, the National Survey cannot provide sufficiently granular information 

for small populations such as protected characteristics. The Race Disparity Evidence Unit 

Tudalen y pecyn 19

https://www.gov.wales/migrant-integration-framework
https://www.gov.wales/migrant-integration-framework


 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

3 
 

commissioned a professor of Quantitative Social Science at the London School of Economics to 

assess the appropriateness of different sampling approaches to boost the survey. This was 

completed in 2023. Based on recommendations from this, the Evidence Units are seeking to 

explore the proposed option in more depth with a view to publish findings from both research 

projects in Summer 2024. 

Pay Gap reporting for Wales 

The Evidence Units are working with Knowledge and Analytical Services to explore a number of 

different techniques to allow more granular analysis of pay gaps for protected and associated 

characteristics including data pooling and data linking. 

Discussions to secure access to administrative data held by other government departments on 

pay are well developed and moving towards a data sharing agreement. If successful, the Welsh 

Government will be able to link pay data to other sources such as Census 2021, to be able to 

publish more granular analysis than is currently possible. 

Anti-Racist Wales Action Plan Evaluation Framework  

The Race Disparity Evidence Unit are developing an overarching impact evaluation framework 

for the Anti-Racist Wales Action Plan. This sets out how RDEU expect change to occur from the 

actions that are being carried out and whether those actions are delivering a change and by 

how much. As well as using numbers to measure change, RDEU will gather people’s stories or 

lived experiences to help describe the value or experience of any change that is taking place.  

RDEU are also commissioning several small-scale lived experience evidence projects to provide 

further evidence to evaluate the impact of the Anti-racist Wales Action Plan. These projects 

focus on the key common themes emerging from the delivery of the Plan e.g. bullying and 

harassment, and several have an intersectional focus. 

Disability Rights Taskforce  

DDEU and EEU are working with the Disability Rights Taskforce (DRT) and the Internal 

Research Programme within Knowledge and Analytical Services to co-produce evidence that 

will test and strengthen the feasibility of some of the DRT priorities. Chairs of the Working 

Groups have been invited to co-design and deliver the research alongside Welsh Government 

analysts and policy officers. The Evidence Units aim to use learning from this project to facilitate 

future evidence co-production work across the Welsh Government. The aim is to publish in 

Autumn/Winter 2024.  

Social Model of Disability  

Existing evidence is all based on the medical model of disability which focusses on impairments 

instead of the social model of disability which asserts that environmental and societal barriers 

disadvantage individuals not their health conditions. The Disability Disparity Evidence Unit has 

commissioned research to develop and test questions that can be used to collect data to 

identify people with health conditions who experience societal barriers that disable them. This 

will support Welsh Government to understand the impact of policies on disabled people and 

how policies can reduce or remove barriers for people with health conditions. The specification 

was developed in partnership with internal and external stakeholders and topic experts. The 

Tudalen y pecyn 20



 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

4 
 

research has been awarded to the National Centre for Social Research, and the contract will 

commence in March 2024.  

LGBTQ+ Action Plan Evaluability Assessment 

The Equality Evidence Unit has commissioned Alma Economics to deliver an Evaluability 

Assessment of the LGBTQ+ Action Plan, which will recommend how to evaluate the impact of 

the plan. This will ensure the plan is delivering for people. The Equality Evidence Unit worked 

closely with policy colleagues across the organisation to ensure that policy needs are met and 

engagement with external partners and LGBTQ+ communities was undertaken sensitively. The 

fieldwork has been completed and the report is being quality assured, with a view to being 

published by Summer 2024.  

Sex and gender data collection standards 

Current Welsh Government data collections are guided by the Government Statistical Service 

harmonised standards on sex and gender. This is a contentious and complex area and 

extensive work is underway to understand the legal, ethical and consultative approaches 

required to deliver the research appropriately. The Equality Evidence Unit has commissioned 

the first phase of this work which will involve a desk review of questions designed for data 

collection on sex and gender identity and an informal consultation with stakeholder 

organisations to understand if there are separate needs in Wales in this area. The contract has 

been awarded to Laurel Research and commenced in March 2024. 

How the Evidence Units work with others 

In our strategy the Evidence Units have committed to co-production, wherever possible and 

appropriate, in developing equalities evidence. The Evidence Units work with people with lived 

experience and those who use equality evidence to understand their needs for analysis and 

evidence in order to help shape the way that information is prioritised and disseminated. The 

Evidence Units encourage people and organisations to get involved in shaping and delivering 

our programmes of evidence and research projects. 

The Evidence Units provide six monthly updates about our work to the Minister for Social 

Justice and Chief Whip which is shared with all Ministers, Special Advisers, and external 

stakeholders. 

The Evidence Units are part of key equality stakeholder groups (including Anti-racist Wales 

Action Plan External Accountability Group, Disability Right Taskforce, LGBTQ+ External 

Accountability Group, Gender Equality Forum and Budget Improvement and Impact Advisory 

Group). Where the Evidence Units provide evidence support and build their needs into the 

Evidence Units evidence plan. 

The Evidence Units collaborate regularly with colleagues in academia and evidence centres to 

make connections and develop areas of research interest. For example, the Centre on the 

dynamics of ethnicity and the Migration, Ethnicity, Race and Diversity Research Group at Cardiff 

University. The Evidence Units meet regularly with SPARK at Cardiff University to share 

learning across various equality projects, including developing approaches to co-produce 

Tudalen y pecyn 21



 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

5 
 

research and renumerate partners with lived experience. The Evidence Units work closely with 

the Wales Centre for Public Policy on research relevant to equality, such as the increasing 

diversity across the "One Wales Public Service” and review of gender affirming approaches to 

inform guidance in schools.  

The Evidence Units also meet regularly to share learning and identify opportunities to join up on 

overlapping priorities with other government departments and public sector organisations such 

as Public Health Wales, Cabinet Office, and Scottish Government. For example, the Evidence 

Units have learnt from UK Race Disparity Unit’s Ethnicity Facts and Figures which has been fed 

into the scoping for the Welsh Government’s one-stop-shop for equalities evidence. The 

Evidence Units worked with the Office for National Statistics (ONS) on ensuring Welsh 

perspectives around Gypsy Roma and Travellers were reflected in a project ONS led. They 

have also worked closely with the ONS and Office for Statistics Regulation to inform the review 

of sex and gender identity use in data collection in Official Statistics. The Evidence Units are 

also currently participating in a joint ONS/Cabinet Office working group to develop a survey of 

disabled people.   

Tudalen y pecyn 22



 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

6 
 

Annex A 

Projects completed in 2023-24 

Project Aim Publication Impact 

Well-being of Wales report: 

More Equal Wales chapter 

 

 

 

To collate the published equality 

statistics for the More Equal 

Wales chapter in the annual Well-

Being of Wales report which 

helps us to assess whether we 

are making progress across the 

National Indicators 

The Well-Being of 

Wales 2023 report was 

published on 28 

September 2023 

 

An ethnicity sub-report 

was published 

alongside the main 

report. 

The Well-being report is a key source 

used by Welsh Government  

stakeholders, including citizens and 

the media to understand the key 

trends and challenges facing Wales. 
It is used by Senedd Cymru, the 

Commissioners and Wales Audit 

Office, to provide scrutiny against 

Wales’ performance against the 

goals.  

 

The ethnicity sub-report will be one of 

the baselines to measure the success 

of the Anti-Racist Wales Action Plan. 

Macro-level inequality rapid 

evidence assessment   

 

 

To provide evidence for the 

Budget’s Strategic Integrated 

Impact Assessment on 

inequalities across Wales, 

focusing on who is most 

disadvantaged. 

Internal review: 

 

was shared with 

Cabinet for discussion 

18th Sept. 2024 on 

23/24 budget cuts, 

informed the Strategic 

Integrated Impact 

Assessment for the 

Draft Budget 24/25. 

Welsh Government’s budget 

allocation has considered within its 

prioritisation resources to support 

people who are at most risk of being 

disadvantaged.  

T
udalen y pecyn 23

https://www.gov.wales/wellbeing-wales-2023
https://www.gov.wales/wellbeing-wales-2023
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/statistics-and-research/2023-11/wellbeing-wales-2023-ethnicity-and-well-being-109.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/cabinet-meeting-18-september-2023-html
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2023-12/2024-2025-draft-budget-narrative.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2023-12/2024-2025-draft-budget-narrative.pdf
https://www.gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2023-12/2024-2025-draft-budget-narrative.pdf


 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

7 
 

Covid Inquiry – assessment of 

evidence for the Covid-19 

inquiry.  

 

 

To provide peer review of reviews 

commissioned by England Covid-

19 inquiry to assess whether the 

Wales evidence base was 

sufficiently covered. 

Pre-existing 

inequalities 

experienced by 

LGBTQ+ groups 

 

Inequality, later life 

and ageism  

Welsh perspective and evidence was 

fully reflected in evidence presented 

as part of the Covid-19 Inquiry.  

Development of the alignment 

framework to support Strategic 

Equality Plan 2024-2028 

 

 

An internal mapping tool to be 

used by colleagues across the 

Equality and Human Rights 

division to track alignment 

between equality policy areas. 

An internal tool for use 

by equality policy 

officials 

The alignment framework has aided 

development of the draft Strategic 

Equality Plan to identify interactions 

between the equality action plans and 

draw out opportunities for greater 

consideration of intersectionality 

across all the equality action plans. 

Anti-Racist Wales Action Plan 

Impact Evaluation and 

Monitoring Framework 

 

 

 

To evaluate the success of the 

Anti-Racist Wales Action Plan. 

Draft of high-level 

summary of the 

framework will be 

shared with wider 

External Accountability 

Group by end of 

February 2024. 

 

Publication is expected 

by Spring 2024. 

The impact of the evaluation 

framework is to influence and embed 

anti-racist approaches through our 

approach to measurement of ARWAP 

and track whether it is achieving its 

aim of making Wales an anti-racist 

country by 2030. 

Census analysis on ethnicity  

 

 

To undertake further analysis of 

Census 2021 on ethnicity by life 

outcomes.  

 

 

Ethnicity bulletin was 

published 5th July 

2023. 

 

Informed policy decision making that 

has sought to address socio-

economic inequalities in society for 

ethnic minority communities in Wales. 

 

T
udalen y pecyn 24

https://covid19.public-inquiry.uk/documents/inq000280059-expert-report-titled-pre-existing-inequalities-experienced-by-lgbtq-groups-by-professor-laia-becares-dated-13-september-2023/
https://covid19.public-inquiry.uk/documents/inq000280059-expert-report-titled-pre-existing-inequalities-experienced-by-lgbtq-groups-by-professor-laia-becares-dated-13-september-2023/
https://covid19.public-inquiry.uk/documents/inq000280059-expert-report-titled-pre-existing-inequalities-experienced-by-lgbtq-groups-by-professor-laia-becares-dated-13-september-2023/
https://covid19.public-inquiry.uk/documents/inq000280059-expert-report-titled-pre-existing-inequalities-experienced-by-lgbtq-groups-by-professor-laia-becares-dated-13-september-2023/
https://covid19.public-inquiry.uk/documents/inq000280058-expert-report-titled-inequality-later-life-and-ageism-by-professor-james-nazroo-dated-19-september-2023/
https://covid19.public-inquiry.uk/documents/inq000280058-expert-report-titled-inequality-later-life-and-ageism-by-professor-james-nazroo-dated-19-september-2023/
https://www.gov.wales/ethnic-group-differences-health-housing-education-and-economic-status-wales-census-2021-html


 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

8 
 

To be a baseline in measuring the 

impact of the ArWAP. 

Anti-Racism and Further 

Education Qualitative 

Research on lived experiences 

of further education students 

 

 

To provide advice and guidance 

on Anti-Racism and Further 

Education Research on lived 

experiences of post-16 learners 

and staff. 

The Anti-Racism and 

Further Education final 

report was published 

on October 5th, 2023. 

Implement more anti-racist 

approaches throughout policy 

decisions in Further Education in 

Wales e.g., enhancing early career 

support provisions for ethnic minority 

staff. 

Migration Integration 

Framework 

 

To develop a Migration 

Integration Wales Indicator 

Framework. 

The Migrant 

Integration Framework 

was published in 

December 2023. 

Inform policy decisions in Wales e.g., 

service development that enable 

migrants to better integrate in Wales. 

Census analysis on disabled 

people  

 

 

To undertake further analysis of 

Census 2021 on disabled people 

by life outcomes. 

Disabled people 

bulletin was published 

6th December 2023. 

 

Improved understanding of the 

barriers to employment disabled 

people face to inform ongoing work of 

Disability Rights Taskforce / Disabled 

Peoples Employment Champions. 

Census sexual orientation and 

gender identity analysis 

 

 

To undertake further analysis of 

Census 2021 on sexual 

orientation and gender identity. 

The bulletin is planned 

for publication in early 

March 2024.  

Improved evidence base on sexual 

identity and gender identity in relation 

to inequality of outcomes. 

 

  

T
udalen y pecyn 25

https://www.gov.wales/towards-anti-racist-further-education-qualitative-research-lived-experiences-learners-and-staff
https://www.gov.wales/towards-anti-racist-further-education-qualitative-research-lived-experiences-learners-and-staff
https://www.gov.wales/migrant-integration-framework-html#:~:text=The%20Home%20Office%20work%20seeks,combine%20the%20best%20of%20both.
https://www.gov.wales/migrant-integration-framework-html#:~:text=The%20Home%20Office%20work%20seeks,combine%20the%20best%20of%20both.
https://www.gov.wales/disabled-peoples-outcomes-health-housing-education-and-economic-status-census-2021
https://www.gov.wales/disabled-peoples-outcomes-health-housing-education-and-economic-status-census-2021
https://www.gov.wales/sexual-orientation-and-gender-identity-differences-health-education-and-economic-status-census-announcement
https://www.gov.wales/sexual-orientation-and-gender-identity-differences-health-education-and-economic-status-census-announcement


 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

9 
 

Projects being delivered in 2024/25 

 

Project  Aim 
Progress 

Expected 

Publication 

Intended Impact 

Wales Equalities Data 

Audit 

 

 

 

To examine what equality 

data and evidence on 

those with protected and 

associated characteristics 

is currently collected and 

analysed in Wales. To 

identify available 

statistical data, gaps in 

data and recommend 

improvements to sources 

and outputs. 

Conducted an initial assessment 

of the data sources and outputs 

that contain equality information 

that are used and produced by 

Statistical Services.  

 

Currently working with each 

policy area in turn within KAS to 

update the audit working with 

colleagues to build our 

understanding of the challenges 

regarding data gaps while 

identifying opportunities for 

immediate fixes. 

Summer-

2024 

To be able to influence and hold 

producers of data within and 

beyond Welsh Government to 

account about the quality and 

availability of their data for use 

informing policy decisions.  

Well-being of Wales 

report: More Equal 

Wales chapter 

 

 

To collate the published 

equality statistics for the 

More Equal Wales 

chapter in the annual 

Well-Being of Wales 

report which helps us to 

assess whether we are 

making progress across 

the National Indicators. 

Initial thinking has started for the 

annual Wellbeing of Wales - More 

Equal Wales chapter has 

commenced. 

September 

2024 

The Well-being report has impact 

in a variety of ways, and is a key 

source used by Welsh 

Government  stakeholders, 

citizens and the media to 

understand the key trends and 

challenges facing Wales. It is 

used by Senedd Cymru and other 

fora to provide scrutiny against 

T
udalen y pecyn 26

file:///D:/Users/brodiee/Objective/Objects/How%20is%20the%20Wellbeing%20of%20Wales%20report%20used%3f%20|%20GOV.WALES


 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

10 
 

Project  Aim 
Progress 

Expected 

Publication 

Intended Impact 

Wales’ performance against the 

goals. 

A review of the 

National Survey: 

equality pooled 

analysis 

 

 

To analyse National 

Survey for Wales data 

and explore the feasibility 

of using pooled data to 

produce robust estimates 

by equality 

characteristics. 

A report summarising findings 

and outlining recommendations to 

improve the collection of 

protected and associated 

characteristics in the National 

Survey for Wales, will be 

published in Spring 2024. 

Spring 2024 To shape the future of the 

National Survey for Wales to aid 

policy areas Welsh Government 

wide in being better able to 

understand trends/impacts of 

their decision making on a range 

of equality groups in priority areas 

captured on the survey. 

Feasibility study of 

minorities sample 

boost for the National 

Survey for Wales 

 

 

 

To examine feasibility to 

boost National Survey 

sample for minority 

groups and cognitive 

testing work. 

 

Currently undertaking single 

tender procurement exercise to 

commission independent expert 

review and recommendations. 

 

Summer 

2024 

Greater data granularity for 

different protected characteristics 

across National Survey topics 

improving the equality evidence 

base overall, including greater 

granularity for the National 

Wellbeing of Wales indicators. 

 

This will in turn enable better 

decision making across a range 

of portfolio areas covered in the 

National Survey. In addition, 

improved measurement to assess 

the success of the various 

equality action plans e.g., 

ArWAP. 

T
udalen y pecyn 27



 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

11 
 

Project  Aim 
Progress 

Expected 

Publication 

Intended Impact 

Feasibility assessment 

of equalities pay gaps 

including ethnicity and 

disability 

 

 

 

 

To examine how and 

whether data on pay 

gaps can be collected 

and published for 

different protected and 

associated characteristics 

at a more granular level 

than currently published. 

Currently exploring access to 

HMRC PAYE data and 

developing a legal basis for 

Welsh Government to acquire the 

data. 

If we are successful, we can link 

PAYE data to other admin 

sources (e.g., Census 2021) that 

have data on protected 

characteristics. 

Utilised learning from a similar 

feasibility project the Office for 

National Statistics undertook 

where they combined multiple 

admin data sets for 2018.  

 

On going – 

unable to 

estimate 

publication 

from analysis 

until data has 

been secured 

within SAIL 

Policy makers can be more 

confident in using findings on 

ethnicity and disability pay gaps 

to inform their policy decisions. 

This work could overcome some 

of the limitations of the Annual 

Population Survey pay gap 

analysis, for example, there 

would be less volatility around the 

data which would enable 

monitoring of trends overtime.  

 

Inform decision making on 

addressing economic inequalities 

in society and provide data to 

allow Welsh Government to 

publish an ethnicity pay gap 

(ArWAP goal) and disability pay 

gap (National Milestone). 

T
udalen y pecyn 28



 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

12 
 

Project  Aim 
Progress 

Expected 

Publication 

Intended Impact 

Public Sector Bodies 

Wales data collection 

2022-23 

 

 

 

To aid delivery of future 

data collection on 

diversity data on 

workforces in public 

sector bodies.  

 

To begin to understand 

the diversity of board 

members across Public 

Bodies regulated by the 

Commissioner for Public 

Appointments in Wales. 

Two pilot Surveys gathering 

information on Board and 

workforce diversity were issued to 

Public Sector Bodies regulated by 

the Commissioner for Public 

Appointments.  

The surveys have now closed, 

and responses are being collated 

and findings summarised. 

 

Spring/summ

er 2024 

Inform policy decisions on how to 

improve the diversity and 

inclusion within public bodies, 

particularly at leadership level. 

Public Sector Bodies 

Literature Review 

 

 

 

To understand the value 

of diversity in Public 

Bodies’ workforces and 

identify appropriate 

Public Sector strategies 

to increase diversity in 

unrepresented groups in 

workforces and senior 

management. 

A literature review is being 

undertaken internally. The project 

is currently in the review phase 

with the writeup scheduled to be 

completed by the end of 

February. 

Spring/summ

er 2024 

Inform policy decisions on how to 

improve the diversity and 

inclusion within public bodies, 

particularly at leadership level. 

Prototyping an 

approach to co-

producing evidence in 

Government  

 

 

To test and develop an 

approach to co-producing 

evidence for analysts in 

Government using the 

Disabled Peoples’ Action 

An initial approach has been 

developed for co-producing 

Social Research. with the 

Disability Rights Taskforce to 

support the evidence needs of 

Autumn/Wint

er 2024 

To ensure lived experience is 

embedded throughout the 

evidence cycle in social research 

across all Welsh Government 

portfolio areas. 

 

T
udalen y pecyn 29



 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

13 
 

Project  Aim 
Progress 

Expected 

Publication 

Intended Impact 

 Plan recommendations 

as feasibility studies. 

the upcoming Disability Rights 

Action Plan.  

The Evidence Units have 

partnered with the Welsh 

Government’s Internal Research 

Programme deliver this. 

To inform policy decisions on how 

to ensure 4 key disability rights 

action plan recommendations are 

actionable and, in turn, increasing 

the impact of the plan for disabled 

people in Wales. 

Barriers and enablers 

to collecting and using 

equality data 

 

 

To research and collect 

evidence on the barriers 

and enablers to collecting 

and using equality data. 

An in-house proposal for the 

research has been developed 

which involves a survey with 

government analysts, small scale 

qualitative research and 

accompanying literature review. 

The literature review search has 

been undertaken and documents 

are in the process of being 

reviewed. The questionnaire is 

being developed alongside the 

literature review. 

Spring 2025 Can identify the solutions to 

barriers in collecting equality 

evidence in Welsh Government 

and increase evidence quality, 

granularity, availability and 

accessibility. 

T
udalen y pecyn 30



 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

14 
 

Project  Aim 
Progress 

Expected 

Publication 

Intended Impact 

Guidance for Welsh 

Government officials 

collecting equality data 

 

 

To provide guidance to 

analysts on how to collect 

data on protected and 

associated 

characteristics, including 

general considerations 

and suggested questions 

and response options for 

each characteristic that 

reflect Welsh 

Government policy. 

 

Draft interim guidance on 

recommendations for equality 

survey questions has been 

drafted. 

Draft is being refined prior to 

sharing with colleagues beyond 

the evidence units for feedback. 

 

Document for 

publication on 

internal 

intranet by 

late Spring 

2024. 

 

To give Welsh Government 

analysts and appointed 

contractors clear advice in 

collecting data on protected and 

associated characteristics, and 

ultimately improve the availability, 

quality and consistency of data 

on protected and associated 

characteristics across all Welsh 

Government outputs in turn 

improving policy decisions across 

all portfolio areas. 

Anti-Racist Wales 

Action Plan Impact  

Evaluation and 

Monitoring Framework 

 

 

To evaluate the success 

of the Anti-Racist Wales 

Action Plan. 

The Race Disparity Evidence Unit 

has developed a framework for 

measuring the overall impact of 

the plan and is assessing the 

feasibility of using this framework 

with members of the External 

Accountability Group through an 

evidence sub-group.  

This group has been shaping the 

development of measurement 

indicators and how to incorporate 

lived experience research.  

The high-

level 

summary of 

the 

framework 

will be 

published by 

Spring 2024.  

 

The full 

framework 

including 

what will be 

measured will 

be published 

The intended impact of the 

evaluation framework is to 

influence, embed anti-racist 

approaches through our 

approach to measurement of 

ARWAP and track whether it is 

achieving its aim of making 

Wales an anti-racist country by 

2030.  

T
udalen y pecyn 31



 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

15 
 

Project  Aim 
Progress 

Expected 

Publication 

Intended Impact 

in the 

Summer 

2024. 

Anti-racist Wales 

Action Plan (ArWAP) 

indicator mapping 

 

To collect together all 

indicators that may be 

used to feed into the 

evaluation and monitoring 

framework and map them 

against policy area and 

concern, and provide an 

indication of their current 

status in terms of the 

availability and quality of 

the data. Key indicators 

across policy areas will 

then be identified. 

Collected and mapped indicators 

from policy frameworks and other 

data sources across policy areas, 

assessed their status and 

included links to the data/analysis 

where available. 

Started the process of speaking 

to policy areas about identifying 

key indicators. 

Ongoing The impact of the evaluation 

framework is to influence, embed 

anti-racist approaches through 

our approach to measurement of 

ARWAP and track whether it is 

achieving its aim of making 

Wales an anti-racist country by 

2030. 

Anti-racist Wales 

Action Plan (ArWAP) 

lived experience 

research 

 

 

 

 

To collect qualitative data 

on the lived experiences 

of people in Wales and 

their experiences of 

racism by commissioning 

small research projects 

focusing on different 

research areas. These 

areas will support 

evidence requirements 

for the key common 

Scoping out the areas that the 

research will cover. 

Conducting initial meetings with 

potential partners/organisations. 

Spring 2024 The impact of the evaluation 

framework is to influence, embed 

anti-racist approaches through 

our approach to measurement of 

ARWAP and track whether it is 

achieving its aim of making 

Wales an anti-racist country by 

2030. 

T
udalen y pecyn 32



 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

16 
 

Project  Aim 
Progress 

Expected 

Publication 

Intended Impact 

themes emerging as the 

implementation of the 

ArWAP develops. 

Anti-racist language 

guidance for statistics 

and research  

 

 

 

To provide guidance to 

Welsh Government 

analysts on using anti-

racist language in 

research and statistical 

reports, releases and 

documents. 

Draft nearly ready for sharing for 

review outside of the immediate 

team 

Document for 

publication on 

internal 

intranet by 

late Spring 

2024 

To give Welsh Government 

analysts and appointed 

contractors an understanding of 

anti-racism and how it applies to 

the language used in 

publications, and ensure all 

Welsh Government analytical 

outputs are anti-racist and role 

model best practice. 

Research on how 

information can be 

collected to reflect the 

social model of 

disability 

 

 

 

To develop a suite of 

questions, response 

options, and guidance 

that reflect the Social 

Model of Disability, to 

incorporate into future 

social research and 

enable a standardised, 

consistent approach. 

The contract has been awarded 

to NatCen and will commence 

early March 2024.  

 

Interim 

report. - 

August 2024  

 

Final report - 

Winter 2025 -  

To enable a standardised, 

consistent approach to collecting 

impairment and disability data for 

statistical and social research, 

that aligns to Welsh 

Government’s commitment to the 

social model and to achieve 

better outcomes for disabled 

people across Wales. 

T
udalen y pecyn 33

https://natcen.ac.uk/


 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

17 
 

Project  Aim 
Progress 

Expected 

Publication 

Intended Impact 

The social model of 

disability language 

guidance for statistics 

and research 

 

 

To provide guidance to 

analysts and researchers 

on using social model 

language in research and 

statistical reports, 

releases and documents, 

including 

recommendations on 

terms that should and 

should not be used. 

Reviewing 2nd draft  Document for 

publication on 

internal 

intranet by 

late Spring 

2024 

To give analysts and researchers 

a better understanding of the 

social model of disability and how 

to apply the language in 

publications to ensure analytical 

and research outputs are in line 

with this view of disability. 

LGBTQ+ Action Plan 

for Wales evaluability 

assessment 

 

 

To create theories of 

change to support the 

LGBTQ+ Action Plan for 

Wales and identify how to 

evaluate the Action Plan. 

The Equality Evidence Unit has 

been working closely with an 

external contractor to deliver this 

project. A draft report has been 

delivered.  

Summer 

2024 

To lay the foundation for a robust 

and effective evaluation of the 

LGBTQ+ Action Plan for Wales 

and identify opportunities for 

improved monitoring and 

evaluation in the LGBTQ+ policy 

area. 

Developing 

harmonised standards 

for data collection on 

sex and gender 

identity by public 

sector organisations in 

Wales.  

 

 

To develop evidence-

based harmonised 

standards and guidance 

on the collection of data 

about sex and gender 

identity, including trans 

status, by public sector 

organisations in Wales. 

A research contract has been 

awarded to Laurel Research 

Consulting The contract will 

commence in March 2024. 

By end of 

2024 

Influencing development of 

standards and guidance by ONS 

and OSR and/or providing 

evidence to inform development 

of Wales-specific standards and 

guidance. 

 

T
udalen y pecyn 34

https://laurelresearch.com/
https://laurelresearch.com/


 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

18 
 

 

Projects being scoped in 2024-25 

 

Project  Aim  Progress  Intended Impact  

Equalities in Student Health 

Research Network 

 

 

Improving equalities data 

collection and reporting in 

Schools Health Research 

Network (SHRN). 

Ongoing: Documentation on SHRN has 

been reviewed. 

 

Meeting is arranged with the Welsh 

Government analytical lead for SHRN to 

agree next steps to undertake the analysis.   

To scope the potential 

use of the Student Health 

and Wellbeing Survey in 

understanding inequality 

of outcome for school 

aged children 

To improve the evidence 

base relating to equalities 

in relation to children and 

young people. 

Debt data by equality 

characteristics 

 

 

 

Explore feasibility of collating 

and publishing annual data on 

debt in Wales, broken down by 

protected characteristics. 

Ongoing: Early scoping stages exploring 

potential data sources. 

 

The family resources survey will arrive from 

April, which will have a boost to the Wales 

sample so additional analysis could be 

performed. 

 

Additional data sources are being explored 

that may enable more granular analysis, this 

includes working with the Administrative 

Data Research teams to identify sources 

held by other government departments 

Welsh Government could seek to acquire.  

Set out the feasibility of 

collating and publishing 

annual data on debt in 

Wales and publish new 

analysis by protected 

characteristics 

Increased understanding 

of how debt differentially 

impacts specific 

characteristic groups. 

T
udalen y pecyn 35



 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

19 
 

Project  Aim  Progress  Intended Impact  

Monitoring equality and 

socio-economic duty 

 

 

 

 

Developing overall framework 

and performance indicators to 

monitor implementation of 

equality and socio-economic 

duty action plans and 

strategies. 

Ongoing: A rapid literature review is being 

undertaken to understand what approaches 

to evaluating a series of equality actions 

plans or strategies have been adopted 

elsewhere. 

This includes understanding how the plans 

themselves: 

1. bridge the implementation gap between 

having plans and actual impact; 

2. build in intersectionality effectively. 

Inform decisions across 

all Welsh Government 

portfolio areas that will 

aim to reduce inequality.  

Financial Sustainability for 

the Evidence Units 

 

 

 

To explore funding 

opportunities external to Welsh 

Government for the Units to 

increase their evidence budget 

and sustainability of the teams. 

Ongoing: A strategy document outlining 

criteria for prioritising opportunities, potential 

funders and funding schemes, and 

assessing opportunities according to 

eligibility and suitability has been drafted. 

 

Advisory meetings with ADR Welsh 

Government colleagues have been 

organised to discuss collaboration 

opportunities. 

Reduced reliance on 

Welsh Government 

budget as funding 

secured elsewhere. 

Intersectional analysis of 

Census 2021 'life-outcomes' 

data 

 

 

 

To identify what Census 2021 

data can tell us about how 

outcomes can vary at the 

intersections between 

protected characteristics. 

 Initial consideration has been started.  To identify and inform 

decisions around who are 

the most at risk from 

experiencing 

disadvantage in society. 

T
udalen y pecyn 36



 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

20 
 

Project  Aim  Progress  Intended Impact  

Impacts of Cost of Living on 

equality groups 

 

 

To understand the ongoing 

impact of the Cost-of-Living 

crisis on people according to 

protected and associated 

characteristics. 

 Initial scoping work has been undertaken 

and an options paper drafted.  

 

Further discussions are ongoing to 

determine how the evidence would be used 

by policy. The planned intersectional Census 

analysis may meet this policy need. 

To identify who are the 

most at risk from 

experiencing 

disadvantage in society 

and inform decisions to 

better support those 

people in Wales. 

National Survey for Wales: 

Socio-economic analysis 

using pooled survey data 

 

 

To provide statistical analysis 

on a range of policy areas 

captured within the National 

Survey for Wales across 

various equality groups. 

 Initial analysis has been undertaken, 

awaiting resources for quality assurance and 

report drafting. 

To identify who are the 

most at risk from 

experiencing 

disadvantage in society 

and inform decisions to 

better support those 

people in Wales. 

Census and SAIL equality 

analysis 

 

  

 

 

To undertake an initial analysis 

of Census and SAIL (Secure 

Anonymised Information 

Linkage) databank equality 

data with ADR Wales to 

examine what is available and 

what further research is 

required, for example 

Compare characteristics 

across 2011, 2021. Analysis of 

sexual orientation for first large 

scale survey including this 

data. 

A programme of work to undertake further 

analysis of Census 2021 data by protected 

and associated characteristics is being 

developed which will consider opportunities 

to provide linked analysis via the sail 

databank. 

To identify who are the 

most at risk from 

experiencing 

disadvantage in society 

and inform decisions to 

better support those 

people in Wales. 

T
udalen y pecyn 37



 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

21 
 

Project  Aim  Progress  Intended Impact  

Digital One Stop Shop of 

Wales equality and diversity 

data, readily available and 

accessible online  

 

 

 

 

Centralised web page where 

evidence on equality can be 

collated to increase 

accessibility of evidence 

across WG and external 

stakeholders. 

Ongoing: Regular contact has been 

established with Digital, Data and 

Technology teams within Welsh Government 

and Office for National Statistics to assess 

opportunities to align with the new 

StatsWales platform. 

 

A programme of user research is being 

developed to assess the needs of an 

audience for the one stop shop. 

Public Sector, Third 

Sector and others can 

use Welsh Government 

equality evidence within 

their own planning and 

decision making for 

example, when 

developing services or 

targeting resources. 

Official statistics relating to 

disabled people and 

employment 

 

 

 

  

To develop a data pack of 

official statistics relating to 

disabled people in Wales.  

 Analysis of relevant Census 2021 datasets 

has been undertaken. Further analysis of 

Annual Population Survey data scheduled. 

Improved understanding 

of the barriers to 

employment disabled 

people face to inform 

ongoing work of Disability 

Rights Taskforce / 

Disabled Peoples 

Employment Champions. 

Barriers to employment for 

disabled people 

 

 

 

To explore work and 

employment experiences for 

disabled people in Wales since 

the coronavirus (COVID-19). 

 

Ongoing: Several meetings with the 

Disability Rights Taskforce (DRT) about the 

scope of the project which is now focused on 

what life is like now for disabled people in 

terms of work and employment experiences 

since COVID-19. 

A specification has been developed and is 

out for review. 

To understand barriers to 

employment and reasons 

for different employment 

outcomes for disabled 

people in Wales, in turn 

informing decisions that 

will better support 

disabled people in 

gaining and sustaining 

employment. 

T
udalen y pecyn 38



 Equality, Race and Disability Evidence Units Work Plan (March 2024) 
 

22 
 

Project  Aim  Progress  Intended Impact  

Welsh Government lead on 

ONS Inclusive Data 

Taskforce 

 

 

 

 

To monitor and report on the 

commitments to assess 

whether we are on track to 

sustainably deliver progress 

across all Inclusive Data 

Principles over the next three 

years, and beyond 

Annual report published on 31st May 2023. 

Quarter 2 (June 2023) update for key 

commitments complete.  

 

 

To ensure consistency 

and coherence to 

inclusive evidence 

developments across the 

Government Statistical 

Service. 

Evidence Review on gender 

inequalities 

 

To support an evidence-

informed approach to gender 

equality action-planning.  

Ongoing: Initial conversations held to shape 

light-touch rapid review on key priority areas. 

Informing policy decisions 

on the implementation 

and development of the 

Advancing Gender 

Equality in Wales Plan. 

 

T
udalen y pecyn 39



Jane Hutt AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Cyfiawnder Cymdeithasol a’r Prif Chwip 
Minister for Social Justice and Chief Whip 

 

 

Bae Caerdydd • Cardiff Bay 
Caerdydd • Cardiff 

CF99 1SN 

Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:  
0300 0604400 

Gohebiaeth.Jane.Hutt@llyw.cymru 
               Correspondence.Jane.Hutt@gov.wales 

 
Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg.  Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth Gymraeg a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd 
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.  
 
We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh.  Any correspondence received in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding 
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.   

 
Jenny Rathbone AS 
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb a Chyfiawnder Cymdeithasol 
 

19 Mawrth 2024  
 
Annwyl Jenny, 
 
 
Rwy'n ysgrifennu atoch yn rhinwedd eich swydd fel Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb a 
Chyfiawnder Cymdeithasol. 
 
Roedd fy sesiwn Cwestiynau Llafar ar 21 Mehefin 2023 yn cynnwys trafodaeth ar noeth-
chwilio plant gan heddluoedd Cymru. Ymrwymais i roi'r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf i'r Senedd 
am y mater pwysig hwn pan oedd Plismona yng Nghymru wedi cwblhau dadansoddiad o'u 
prosesau a'u data mewnol a rhoi gwybodaeth i mi yn seiliedig ar hyn. 
 
Mae plismona yn fater a gedwir yn ôl, a Llywodraeth y Deyrnas Unedig sy'n gyfrifol amdano. 
Fodd bynnag, mae achosion o noeth-chwilio plant gan yr heddlu yn fater yr ydym yn ei 
gymryd o ddifrif o ystyried pwysigrwydd lles plant Cymru. Rwyf wedi cael sawl trafodaeth 
gyda'r Comisiynydd Heddlu a Throseddu arweiniol, Andy Dunbobbin yn ein cyfarfodydd dal i 
fyny rheolaidd ac mae Plismona yng Nghymru wedi rhoi'r wybodaeth isod i mi ac wedi 
cadarnhau y gellir rhannu hyn ag Aelodau'r Senedd. 
 
Mae Plismona yng Nghymru wedi cynghori bod adolygiad o'u gweithdrefnau a'u prosesau 
wedi canfod bod gan bob un o'r pedwar Heddlu yng Nghymru weithdrefnau llywodraethu 
llym ar waith, eu bod yn cydymffurfio â gofynion Deddf yr Heddlu a Thystiolaeth Droseddol 
1984 ynghylch noeth-chwilio plant sy'n cynnwys craffu allanol ac annibynnol ar ffurf y Grŵp 
Cynghori Annibynnol, Byrddau Diogelu Rhanbarthol a Chomisiynydd Plant Cymru. 
 
Mae gan heddluoedd ystod o fframweithiau craffu a llywodraethu ar waith i gefnogi lles plant 
sy'n cael eu chwilio, gan gynnwys defnyddio camerâu a wisgir ar y corff a chamerâu teledu 
cylch cyfyng yn y ddalfa; oedolion priodol yn bresennol ym mron pob ardal; panelau a 
grwpiau cynghori. Mae pob heddlu wedi mabwysiadu ymarfer sy'n ystyriol o drawma yn eu 
gweithdrefnau stopio a chwilio ac yn gwneud atgyfeiriadau diogelu lle bo hynny'n briodol. 
 
Mae'r term 'noeth-chwilio' yn cwmpasu ystod eang o ymarfer, o dynnu darn allanol o ddillad, 
fel siaced, i chwiliadau llawer mwy personol. Er bod angen cynnal yr holl weithgarwch hwn 
mewn modd sensitif a phriodol, mae'r ffigurau a ddarparwyd gan yr heddlu yn tynnu sylw at 
y ffaith bod y rhan fwyaf o'r chwiliadau hyn yn ymyrryd llawer llai nag y gallai'r term 'noeth-
chwilio' ei awgrymu, gyda dim ond haenau allanol o ddillad wedi'u tynnu yn y mwyafrif 
helaeth o achosion. 

Tudalen y pecyn 40

Eitem 2.5

mailto:Gohebiaeth.Jane.Hutt@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Jane.Hutt@gov.wales


 
Canfu adolygiad yr heddlu fod cyfanswm o 5,428 o achosion o noeth-chwilio plant wedi cael 
eu cynnal yng Nghymru dros y cyfnod dwy flynedd rhwng 2021-22 a 2022-23. Roedd pob 
un ond chwech o'r 5,428 o achosion yn ymwneud â phlant 13 oed neu hŷn. Roedd y 
chwiliadau hyn yn gysylltiedig yn bennaf â chludo arfau ymosodol neu gyffuriau 
anghyfreithlon. Dylid nodi bod y rhif yn cofnodi nifer y chwiliadau fel digwyddiadau unigol, yn 
hytrach na nifer y plant a gafodd eu chwilio. 
 
Er eu bod yn dod o dan y diffiniad o noeth-chwilio fel yr amlinellwyd uchod, ar gyfer y rhan 
fwyaf o'r chwiliadau hyn nid oedd y plant wedi gorfod tynnu eu dillad, neu dim ond chwiliad 
sylfaenol a wnaed - hy lle cafodd côt, siaced neu fenig eu tynnu. O'r 5,428 o chwiliadau, 
roedd 85 yn cynnwys chwiliad mwy trylwyr, neu chwiliad sy'n gofyn am ddinoethi rhannau 
personol o'r corff.   
 
Mae'r wybodaeth hefyd yn dangos nifer y plant o gefndiroedd Du ac ethnig leiafrifol a oedd  
wedi cael eu noeth-chwilio:  
 

• Gwent 12  

• Gogledd Cymru 1 

• Dyfed Powys 3 

• De Cymru 51 
 
Y Dirprwy Brif Gwnstabl Rachel Williams sy'n gyfrifol am y portffolio ar gyfer Plismona sy'n 
Canolbwyntio ar Blant ledled Cymru ac mae'n cydweithio â phob un o'r pedwar Heddlu yng 
Nghymru i gael gwell dealltwriaeth o unrhyw welliannau y gellir eu gwneud yn y maes hwn, 
ochr yn ochr ag arolygu a disgwyliadau Comisiynwyr Heddlu a Throseddu ac Arolygiaeth 
Cwnstabliaeth a Gwasanaethau Tân ac Achub Ei Fawrhydi. Bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn 
parhau i drafod y mater hwn. 
 
Yn unol â'r ymrwymiad a roddais yn ystod y Cyfarfod Llawn rwy'n anfon copi o'r llythyr hwn 
at holl Aelodau'r Senedd.  

 
 
Jane Hutt AS/MS 
Y Gweinidog Cyfiawnder Cymdeithasol a’r Prif Chwip 
Minister for Social Justice and Chief Whip 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 41



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PLEASE LEAVE BLANK 
  

Tudalen y pecyn 42



 

Tudalen y pecyn 43



 

 

  

 

Annwyl Sarah,  

8 Ebrill 2024 

Camau Bach, Brwydrau Mawr: Gofal Plant yng Nghymru 

Diolch ichi am eich llythyr a’ch diddordeb yng ngwaith dilynol y Pwyllgor ar ofal plant. Ymddiheuraf 

am yr oedi cyn ymateb ichi. Nodwyd eich gohebiaeth yn ein cyfarfod ar 5 Chwefror, ond ni fu modd 

imi roi ymateb ystyrlon ichi hyd yma oherwydd yr ansicrwydd o ran ein blaenraglen waith.  

Rydym yn ddiolchgar ichi am dynnu sylw at eich adroddiad diweddaraf ac am rannu manylion 

ynghylch eich gwaith ymgysylltu â sefydliadau llawr gwlad, gan gynnwys rhieni a theuluoedd. Yn eich 

llythyr, rydych yn cynnig rhoi tystiolaeth ffurfiol i’n hymchwiliad. Er bod rhai Aelodau yn awyddus i 

dderbyn eich cynnig, ar ôl ystyried eich cais ymhellach, rwyf o’r farn y dylem ei wrthod yn gwrtais y tro 

hwn.  

Mae sawl rheswm am hyn. Un rheswm yw statws y gwaith hwn, sef gwaith dilynol i’r ymchwiliad 

gwreiddiol a’r angen i sicrhau bod y Pwyllgor yn canolbwyntio ar ddatrysiadau posibl yn hytrach nag 

edrych unwaith eto ar yr heriau sy’n wynebu rhieni sy’n gweithio a’r sector. Erbyn hyn, rydym yn deall 

yn weddol dda yr heriau hyn, sy’n ddilys ac o gryn bryder wrth gwrs, a chafwyd trafodaeth helaeth yn 

eu cylch yn ystod yr ymchwiliad gwreiddiol a dyna pam y gwnaethom benderfynu canolbwyntio ar 

ddatrysiadau. At hynny, mae’r penderfyniad i ohirio’r rhan fwyaf o’r ymchwiliad hwn er mwyn edrych 

ar frys ar honiadau brawychus o gamymddwyn o fewn y Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub wedi lleihau’r 

amser sydd ar gael inni ac felly byddai’n anodd darparu ar gyfer paneli ychwanegol heb oedi’r 

ymchwiliad ymhellach.  

Rwy’n gwerthfawrogi y gallai’r penderfyniad hwn beri siom ichi ac i’r sefydliadau yr ydych yn gweithio 

gyda hwy. Fodd bynnag, mae ffyrdd eraill y gallai eich adroddiad gael effaith a byddwn yn hapus i 

drefnu cyfarfod i drafod eich canfyddiadau yn fanylach. Os oes gennych ddiddordeb mewn cyfarfod, 

mae croeso ichi siarad â’r Tîm Clercio i drefnu dyddiad cyfleus.  

  

Y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb  
a Chyfiawnder Cymdeithasol 
— 
Equality and Social Justice  
Committee 

Senedd Cymru 
Bae Caerdydd, Caerdydd, CF99 1SN 

SeneddCydraddoldeb@senedd.cymru 
senedd.cymru/SeneddCydraddoldeb  

0300 200 6565 

— 
Welsh Parliament 

Cardiff Bay, Cardiff, CF99 1SN 
SeneddEquality@senedd.wales 

senedd.wales/SeneddEquality  
0300 200 6565 

Sarah Rees  

Oxfam Cymru  

Tudalen y pecyn 44

Eitem 2.6



 

 

Diolch unwaith eto ichi am eich diddordeb yn y mater hwn ac am dynnu ein sylw at y gwaith hwn.  

Yn gywir,  

 

Jenny Rathbone AS 

Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb a Chyfiawnder Cymdeithasol  

 

Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg. 

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English. 

Tudalen y pecyn 45



 
 

For the attention of Jenny Rathbone MS, Chair, Equality and Social Justice Committee. 

 

I am writing with regard to the Equality and Social Justice Committee consultation on childcare and 

parental employment. Oxfam Cymru’s strategy makes a strong commitment to sharing our platform, 

amplifying the voices of partners, and ensuring a diverse range of perspectives are duly 

acknowledged and heard. As part of this commitment, we are keen to extend our platform to 

grassroots organisations, (and the working parents they support), with whom we work closely. Our 

mission is to support and mentor them to become confident to contribute substantively to the 

consultation process. 

We are encouraged by the positive feedback we received thus far regarding our collaborative 

approach. Notably, during the recent launch of our research, Little Steps, Big Struggles: Childcare in 

Wales you may have had the pleasure of meeting representatives from Mother’s Matter CIC. They 

informed us that it was the first time they had visited the Senedd or participated in a campaign of 

this nature. The feedback we received underscores the importance of our support in nurturing their 

understanding of political processes and advocacy efforts. 

With due respect, we kindly request your consideration in allowing us to present oral evidence to 

the committee, alongside our grassroots partners. Given the dynamic nature of the subject matter 

and the rapid developments therein, we believe that our insights could offer valuable nuances and 

recent updates to inform your inquiry. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter and considering the opportunity to contribute 

meaningfully to your vital work. 

 

Kind regards 

Sarah Rees 

Head of Oxfam Cymru 

Tudalen y pecyn 46

https://oxfamapps.org/cymru/wp-content/uploads/2023/11/Litle-Steps-Big-Struggles.pdf
https://oxfamapps.org/cymru/wp-content/uploads/2023/11/Litle-Steps-Big-Struggles.pdf


Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 47

Eitem 4Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vii o Reol Sefydlog 17.42



Mae cyfyngiadau ar y ddogfen hon

Tudalen y pecyn 55

Yn rhinwedd paragraff(au) vii o Reol Sefydlog 17.42


	Agenda
	2.1 Gohebiaeth rhwng y Cadeirydd a Chomisiynwyr Tân De Cymru ynghylch Gwasanaethau Tân ac Achub Cymru
	Gohebiaeth oddi wrth y Cadeirydd at Gomisiynwyr Tân De Cymru ynghylch Gwasanaethau Tân ac Achub Cymru - 18 Mawrth 2024
	Gwasanaeth Tân ac Achub De Cymru
	Penodi Stuart Millington fel Prif Swyddog Tân Dros Dro
	Penodi olynydd parhaol fel Prif Swyddog Tân
	Adnoddau ar gyfer gwneud eich gwaith
	Cydweithio



	2.2 Gohebiaeth oddi wrth Ymddiriedolaeth GIG Gwasanaethau Ambiwlans Cymru at y Cadeirydd yn rhoi gwybodaeth ychwanegol yn ymchwiliad y Gwasanaethau Tân ac Achub (Saesneg yn unig)
	2.3 Gohebiaeth oddi wrth Gadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyllid at y Cadeirydd yn gofyn am ragor o wybodaeth ynghylch craffu ar y gyllideb
	2.4 Gohebiaeth oddi wrth Lywodraeth Cymru at y Cadeirydd yn ymateb i bwynt gweithredu a gododd yn dilyn cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Cydraddoldeb a Chyfiawnder Cymdeithasol ar 21 Ionawr 2024 ynghylch Unedau Tystiolaeth Cydraddoldeb, Hil ac Anabledd (Saesneg yn unig)
	2.5 Gohebiaeth oddi wrth y Gweinidog Cyfiawnder Cymdeithasol a’r Prif Chwip at y Cadeirydd ynghylch noeth-chwilio plant gan yr Heddlu
	2.6 Gohebiaeth rhwng y Cadeirydd ac OXFAM ynghylch yr ymchwiliad dilynol i’r ddarpariaeth gofal plant yng Nghymru
	Gohebiaeth at y Cadeirydd oddi wrth OXFAM ynghylch yr ymchwiliad dilynol i’r ddarpariaeth gofal plant yng Nghymru - 26 Ionawr 2024 (Saesneg yn unig)

	4 Y flaenraglen waith: trafod y camau nesaf
	Papur cyfrifoldebau'r Gweinidogion




